
 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Banquet Hall, 1042 Event Center Drive  

Wednesday, January 04, 2023 at 11:00 AM  

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Board Members 

Todd Purcell, Chair 

Terry Polk, Vice Chair 

Pam Owens, Secretary 

Mike Carroll 

Penny Reeves 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
DSRP Manager Emily Nelson 

DSRP Assistant Manager Lily Sellers 

DSRP Programs Manager Caylie Houchin 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By low no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

MINUTES 

1. Discuss and consider approval of the July 6, 2022, DSRP Board regular meeting minutes. 

2. Discuss and consider approval of the September 7, 2022, DSRP Board regular meeting 

minutes. 

BUSINESS 

3. Discuss and consider approval of the 2023 DSRP Board  meeting calendar. 

4. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Co-Sponsorship Agreement with 

Dripping Springs Ag Boosters. 

1



5. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Rate Reduction Request by Dripping 

Springs Wild Game Dinner. 

REPORTS 

The following reports relate to the planning and administration of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park & 

Event Center. The board may provide staff direction; however, no action may be taken. 

6. DSRP Monthly Managers Report, October - December 2022 
Emily Nelson, DSRP Manager 

7. DSRP Programs Monthly Report 
Caylie Houchin, DSRP Program Coordinator 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to 

adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 

(Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073  (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 

(Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic 

Development). The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs may 

act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to 

Open Session for action.  

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

DSRP Board Meetings 
2023 Meetings TBD 

 

City Council Meetings 
December 6, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

December 20, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

January 3, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

January 17, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes Annotated. In addition, the Board may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any Board 

Member for absence from this meeting. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingpsrings.com, on December 29, 2022, at 4:00 p.m. 

 
Michelle Fischer for City Secretary 

2



This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

3



 

DSRP Board of Directors  July 6, 2022 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 3 

 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

City of Dripping Springs 

Banquet Hall, 1042 Event Center Drive 

Wednesday, July 06, 2022 at 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

With a quorum of the Board present, Chair Purcell called the meeting to order at 11:08 a.m. 

Board Members present were: 

Todd Purcell, Chair 

Terry Polk, Vice Chair 

Pam Owens, Secretary 

Penny Reeves 

Mike Carroll 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials present were: 
Parks & Community Services Director Andrew Binz 

DSRP Manager Emily Nelson 

DSRP Assistant Manager Lily Sellers 

Emergency Management Coordinator Roman Baligad 

Parks & Recreation Commissioner Hope Boatright 

1. Introduction of Parks & Community Services Director Andrew Binz. 

Andrew Binz introduced himself to the Board. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By low no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

 

No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens.  

 

 

4

Item 1.



 

DSRP Board of Directors  July 6, 2022 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 

MINUTES 

2. Approval of the May 11, 2022, DSRP Board regular meeting minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to approve the May 11, 2022, DSRP Board 

regular meeting minutes. Secretary Owens seconded the motion which carried unanimously 

5 to 0. 

BUSINESS 

3. Discuss and consider recommendation of a Use Agreement between the City of 

Dripping Springs and Hell Country Productions, Inc. for the use of Dripping Springs 

Ranch Park to host a Haunted House attraction. 

 

Emily Nelson presented the staff report which is on file. Staff recommends approval of the 

agreement. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to recommend City Council approval of a 

Use Agreement between the City of Dripping Springs and Hell Country Productions, Inc. 

for the use of Dripping Springs Ranch Park to host a Haunted House attraction. Secretary 

Owens seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

 

4. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding an addendum to a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the Hays County Office of Emergency Services and the 

City of Dripping Springs related to Emergency Sheltering at the Dripping Springs 

Ranch Park Event Center. 

 

Roman Baligad presented the staff report which is on file. Staff recommends approval of the 

memorandum. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Carroll to recommend City Council approval of an 

addendum to a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Hays County Office of 

Emergency Services and the City of Dripping Springs related to Emergency Sheltering at 

the Dripping Springs Ranch Park Event Center. Board Member Reeves seconded the motion 

which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

The following reports relate to the administration of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park Event Center. 

The Board may provide staff direction; however, no action may be taken. 

5. DSRP Manager Report 

 

Report is on file and available for review upon request. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to 

adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 

(Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073  (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 

5

Item 1.



 

DSRP Board of Directors  July 6, 2022 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 

(Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic 

Development). The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs may 

act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to 

Open Session for action.  

 

The Board did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board Meetings 
August 3, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. 

September 7, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. 

October 5, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
July 12, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. (CC) 

July 19, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

July 26, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. (CC) 

August 2, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

ADJOURN 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to adjourn the meeting. Board Member Carroll seconded 

the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

This regular meeting adjourned at 11:34 a.m. 

 

 

Pam Owens 

 

 

Pam Owens, Secretary 

DSRP Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

6

Item 1.



 

DSRP Board of Directors  September 7, 2022 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 2 

 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

City of Dripping Springs 

Banquet Hall, 1042 Event Center Drive 

Wednesday, September 07, 2022 at 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

With a quorum of the Board present, Vice Chair Polk called the meting to order at 11:17 a.m. 

Board Members present were: 

Terry Polk, Vice Chair 

Pam Owens, Secretary 

Penny Reeves 

Mike Carroll 

Board Member absent was: 

Todd Purcell, Chair 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
DSRP Manager Emily Nelson 

DSRP Assistant Manager Lily Sellers 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

 

No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

BUSINESS 

1. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding Amendments to the Dripping Springs 

Ranch Park Fee Schedule. 

7

Item 2.



 

DSRP Board of Directors  September 7, 2022 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 2 

A motion was made by Board Member Carroll to recommend City Council approval of 

Amendments to the Dripping Springs Ranch Park Fee Schedule. Board Member Reeves seconded 

the motion which carried unanimously 4 to 0. 

2. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Banner Co-Sponsorship Agreement with 

Texas Market Guide and Dripping Springs Helping Hands. 

 

A motion was made by Secretary Owens to recommend City Council approval of Banner Co-

Sponsorship Agreement with Texas Market Guide and Dripping Springs Helping Hands. Board 

Member Carroll seconded the motion which carried unanimously 4 to 0. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

The following reports relate to the administration of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park Event Center. The 

Board may provide staff direction; however, no action may be taken. 

 

Report is on file and available for review upon request. 

3. Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager's Monthly Report 
Emily Nelson, DSRP Manager 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to 

adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 

(Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073  (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 

(Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic 

Development). The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs may 

act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to 

Open Session for action.  

 

The Board did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

DSRP Board Meetings 
October 5, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. 

November 2, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. 

December 7, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. 

City Council Meetings 
September 13 2022, at 5:30 p.m. 

September 20, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

September 27, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

Via unanimous consent, the Board adjourned this regular meeting at 11:57 a.m. 

 

8

Item 2.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Submitted By: Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

Meeting Date: December 7, 2022 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider approval of the 2023 DSRP Board  meeting 

calendar. 

Agenda Item Requestor: Emily Nelson, DSRP Manager 

Summary/Background:  Each year the DSRP Board annual meeting calendar is drafted according to 

the committee’s meeting frequency and the approved City Holiday and 

Closures Calendar. 

Attached for approval is the 2023 DSRP Board Meeting Calendar with 

meetings highlighted in green. There are no meetings on approved 

holidays/closures; however, the July meeting is the day after a holiday, and it 

is recommended that this meeting be rescheduled. 

Recommended  

Committee Actions: 

It is the committee’s pleasure to reschedule any meeting on this calendar. 

Staff does recommend rescheduling the July meeting and approving the 

calendar with any changes. 

Attachments: 1. Approved City Holiday and Closure calendar with DSISD and Hays 

County holidays. 

2. Draft 2023 DSRP Board Meeting Calendar 

Next Steps/Schedule: 1. Incorporate approved calendar into final meeting calendar. 

2. Update city website for meetings, add meeting room calendar and send 

calendar invites to board, staff, consultants, and council members. 

3. Distribute final calendar to board and staff. 

 

9

Item 3.



01/02/23 New Year's Day

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 01/16/23 Martin Luther King Jr. Day

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 02/20/23 Presidents' Day

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 05/29/23 Memorial Day

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 07/04/23 Independence Day

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 09/04/23 Labor Day

29 30 31 26 27 28 10/09/22 Columbus Day

11/10/23 Veterans Day

11/23/23 Thanksgivng Day

11/24/23 Thanksgivng Holiday

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 12/22/23 Christmas Eve

1 2 3 4 1 12/25/23 Christmas Day

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 12/29/23 New Year's Eve

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 3/13-17/23 DSISD Spring Break

30 04/10/23 Hays County Easter

06/19/23 Hays County Juneteenth

11/20-24/23 DSISD Thanskgiving Break

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 11/22-24/23 Hays County Thankgiving Holiday

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 12/18-29/23 DSISD Winter Break

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12/22-25/23 Hays County Christmas Holiday

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 03/02/23 Staff Development / Quarterly Meet

06/01/23 Staff Development / Quarterly Meet

09/07/23 Staff Development / Quarterly Meet

12/07/23 Staff Development / Quarterly Meet

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31

30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

DSISD and Hays County Holidays

2023
Use spinner to change the calendar year

JANUARY FEBRUARY

City of Dripping Springs Holiday Calendar

MARCH APRIL

MAY JUNE

JULY AUGUST

Staff Development / Quarterly Meetings

10

Item 3.



SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 01/02/23 New Year's Day
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 01/26/23 Martin Luther King Jr. Day
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 02/20/23 Presidents' Day

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 05/29/23 Memorial Day
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 07/04/23 Independence Day
29 30 31 26 27 28 09/04/23 Labor Day

10/09/22 Columbus Day
11/10/23 Veterans Day
11/23/23 Thanksgiving Day

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 11/24/23 Thanksgiving Holiday
1 2 3 4 1 12/22/23 Christmas Eve

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 12/25/23 Christmas Day
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 12/29/23 New Year's Eve
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 01/04/23 Regular Meeting
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 02/01/23 Regular Meeting

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 03/01/23 Regular Meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 04/05/23 Regular Meeting
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 05/03/23 Regular Meeting

06/07/23 Regular Meeting
07/05/23 Regular Meeting
08/02/23 Regular Meeting

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 09/06/23 Regular Meeting
1 1 2 3 4 5 10/04/23 Regular Meeting

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 11/01/23 Regular Meeting
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 12/06/23 Regular Meeting

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31

30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

MARCH APRIL

DSRP Board Meetings
Meeting Frequency: 1st Wednesday each 
month
Meeting Time: 11:00 a.m.
Meeting Location: Ranch Park Event Center

MAY JUNE

2023 DSRP Board Meeting Calendar
Use spinner to change the calendar year

JANUARY FEBRUARY CODS Holidays

11

Item 3.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Emily Nelson, Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager 

DSRP Board 

Meeting Date: 

January 4, 2023 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Co-Sponsorship 

Agreement with Dripping Springs Ag Boosters. 

Agenda Item 

Requestor: 

Emily Nelson  

Summary/Background:   Dripping Springs Ranch Park and Dripping Springs Ag Boosters has a long history of 

working together. The agreement needed a complete updating so that it is relevant to current 

DSRP operations. 

Highlighted Changes: 

 Facility Rental Fees change from free to 50% discount 

 Other facility fees remain at 100% 

 Allows Ag Boosters to sell shavings at livestock events (when requested). You guys 

will keep $1.00 per bag. We will do a shavings count before and after and then 

invoice for what is missing (meaning that you will want something watching the 

shavings) 

 Requires bathroom porters for large attendance events 

 Removes ability for DSRP to request 3 volunteers for every non-profit and/or 

livestock show 

 Removes the $125 charge for all kitchen repairs 

Staff 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the DSRP Board to consider recommending the updated 

version of the agreement. 

Attachments: DRAFT: Dripping Springs Ag Boosters Co-Sponsorship Agreement 

Next Steps/Schedule: If DSRP Board recommends, present to City Council. 

12

Item 4.



 

13

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 1  

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK    

 

USE AGREEMENT 

 

This Use Agreement (together with all Exhibits and attachments specifically described herein, 

the “Agreement”) by and between the City of Dripping Springs, Texas, a Type A, general-law 

municipality incorporated pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and located in Hays 

County, Texas, ( the “"City”") and the Dripping Springs Vocational Ag Boosters Association, 

Inc., a domestic nonprofit corporation, (the “"Ag Boosters”") providing for the terms of use 

of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park Events Center and other park amenities (the “DSRP 

Premises” or the "“DSRP”"). 

 

WHEREAS,    the City is a Type A, general-law municipality incorporated pursuant to the statutes 

of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS,WHEREAS  the City has express authority to contract with other persons 

pursuant to section 

51.014 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has express authority to contract with other persons pursuant to 

Section 51.014 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Drippings Springs ("City") enacted a Policy for Use of DSRP ("Policy") 

which sets out standards and guidelines for allowing entities to use Dripping 

Springs DSRP at no charge or at a reduced rate; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council determines that Ag Boosters meets the standards set forth in 

the Policy; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Dripping Springs finds that the use of DSRP by the Ag Boosters is 

for the public purpose of providing an event that will serve the local community 

and benefit the residents of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following provisions are reasonable and 

necessary for the use of DSRP by the Ag Boosters. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations 

hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration the City and Ag Boosters herein 

bargain, covenant, and agree with one another as follows: 

 

A. Purpose: This Agreement serves as a statement or exchange of promises between the City and 

the Ag Boosters. It is enacted to provide clear responsibilities and duties for the use of 

DSRP by Ag Boosters to ensure that the use of DSRP by the Ag Boosters benefits the 

public, and specifically, the residents of Dripping Springs. 

 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Centered, Right:  1.4"

Commented [AH1]: Is the Copyright and Sponsorship 

Agreement an addendum to this Contract? An Exhibit?  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.06"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.06", Space

Before:  0 pt

14

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 2  

 

 

 

 

 

B. Obligations of the Parties: 

 

(1) Use of DSRP 

 

(a) Ag Boosters Fall Classic Stock Show. The City agrees to allow the Ag Boosters to use 

the DSRP Event Center to hold the Ag Booster Fall Classic Stock Show at no 

charge50% discount on facility rental fees. The City understands and agrees that Ag 

Boosters will use the DSRP Event Center for  the Ag Booster Fall Classic Stock Show 

the tThird weekend of each November for a total of four (4) days, including two (2) 

days to set up for the event, and two (2) days to conduct the event. 

 

(b) Additional Weekends. The City agrees to allow the Ag Boosters to use the DSRP Event 

Center for two additional weekend events for a total of four (4) days at no charge50% 

discount on facility rental fees. Ag  Boosters understands and agrees that the dates for 

use of DSRP for the weekend events  will depend on availability in accordance with 

Subsection (c) below. If Ag Boosters assigns the weekend to another organization. They 

are required to follow all requirements of this agreement. 

 

(c) Scheduling. Ag Boosters agrees and understands that in the event that Ag Boosters is 

scheduled to utilize DSRP during a time when another person or entity who is willing 

and required to pay 100% rates for use of DSRP wishes to schedule an event, where the 

schedule request is made at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled Ag Booster 

event, the City and the Ag Boosters will schedule the Ag Boosters event around the 

paying entities'’ event. Both parties understand that once the Ag Boosters event is 

scheduled, the City may not move the Ag Boosters event without the consent of Ag 

Boosters. 

 

 

(d) Service to the Community. The Ag Boosters agree that the use of DSRP will be in 

furtherance of its service to the community of the City of Dripping Springs. 

 

 

(2) Concession Stand 

 

(a) Operation of Concession Stand. The City agrees to allow the Ag Boosters the option to 

operate, supply with concessions, and maintain the concession stand at DSRP when an 

entity scheduled to use DSRP requests that the City provide those services at a 50% 

discount on facility rental fees. The City agrees to allow the Ag Boosters to retain all 

profits generated from concessions sold when the Ag Boosters operate the concession 

stand and provide all supplies, goods, and services in accordance with this subsection. 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0 pt

15

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 3  

 

(3) Maintenance and Repair of DSRPRental Fee Responsibilities: 

 

(a) Dripping Springs Ag Boosters will be responsible for for upkeep, maintenance and 

repair of kitchen equipment up to $125 per repair. If repairs are needed over $125 the 

City will be responsible for those repairs..facility rental fees at a 50% discount. 

 

(b) Ag Boosters shall be required to pay all other facility fees like custodial fees, for 

equipment fees,  orand staff fees for event setup or breakdown at no discount. premises 

utilized. 

 

  

(c) For events with a large attendance, Ag Boosters will be required to hire a bathroom porter. 

 

 

 

(d) For livestock shows, Ag Boosters shall be required to purchase shavings from DSRP. 

  

(e) For livestock shows, Ag Boosters shall be required to pay stall and pen cleaning fees, as 

necessary upon facility manager’s sole discretion. 

 

  

(f) Ag Boosters shall be responsible for staffing fees and after hours fees, if applicable, 

when 

  

• The rental period is more than twelve (12) hours including setup and breakdown;  

• The event ends after midnight; or 

• The event requires more than two (2) staff members 

(g) All RV and Stall Reservations are the responsibility of DSRP staff. 

 

(b) Ag Boosters shall be required to pay all custodial fees utilized during an event. 

 

(c) For livestock shows, Ag Boosters shall be required to purchase shavings from DSRP and 

pay stall cleaning fees. 

(4) Shavings: Ag Boosters may sell shavings at Livestock shows when requested by DSRP staff 

at the rate specified on the fee schedule. Fee includes sales tax. DSRP will provide Ag Boosters 

an inventory count of the shavings prior to the event. An  inventory count will be conducted 

post event and DSRP will invoice Ag Boosters for the shavings sales minus the amount Ag 

Boosters retains. Ag Boosters will keep $1.00/bag sold. DSRP is responsible for paying all 

sales tax. 

 

(5) Preparation for Events: Ag Boosters agrees to coordinate and provide volunteers to assist at 

Non-Profit and/or Ag Related events held at DSRP pursuant to this Agreement. This 

service includes, but is not limited to providing at least three (3) volunteers to prepare 

DSRP for an event when such services are requested by the City. Ag Boosters shall be 

responsible for staffing fees and afterhours fees, if applicable, whenif: 

Commented [AH2]: Can delete but want to pay 

custodial fee 

Commented [EN3R2]: Strike this. They do have to 

pay custodial even if they are only providing concessions 

for other events. It is $150/event. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Hanging:  0.25",

Right:  0", Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or

numbering, Tab stops: Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Hanging:  0.25",

Right:  0", Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or

numbering, Tab stops: Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Hanging:  0.25",

Right:  0", Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or

numbering, Tab stops: Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Hanging:  0.25",

Right:  0", Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or

numbering, Tab stops: Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Right:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab

stops: Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.32",  No bullets

or numbering

Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52))

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough, Character scale: 100%

16

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 4  

(4)  

(a) The rental period is more than twelve (12) hours; 

 

(b) The event ends after midnight; or 

 

(a) The event requires more than two (2) staff members The rental period is more than twelve 

(12) hours; 

(b) The rental period is after midnight; or 

(c) The event requires more than two (2) staff members. 

 

 

(6) Care of Premises: Ag Boosters agrees that each time DSRP is used by Ag Boosters, Ag 

Boosters will ensure that DSRP is left in as clean and orderly state as before each meeting. Ag 

Boosters agrees not to injure, mar, or in any manner deface any part of the DSRP premises 

and/or property and agrees not to cause or permit anything to be injured, marred, or defaced. 

Without the written consent of the City, nothing shall be affixed to the building, furnishings, 

or fixtures and no flammable materials may be brought on Dripping Springs DSRP 

premises unless the City is notified in advance that such material will be brought on DSRP 

premises. 

 

(5)(7) Insurance:  AG Boosters shall assume all risk and liability for accidents and 

damages that may occur to persons or property during AG Booster events under this 

Agreement. AG Booster shall not be covered by the City’s liability carrier. AG 

Booster shall, at its own and sole expense, acquire and maintain insurance coverage 

with insurers licensed to do business in the State of Texas and acceptable to the City 

for the full term of this Agreement. AG Boosters shall comply with all insurance 

requirements _____. AG Boosters shall notify the City in writing within thirty (30) 

days of any material change or cancellation of coverage.  

 

C. Contact Information 

(1) Ag Boosters will at all times maintain the following points of contact: 

Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

Attn: Mark 

CoffmanStephanie 

Kirkey 

 300 Sullivan Ridge 

P.O Box 1008 

Dripping Springs,  

Dripping Springs, TX 

78620TX 78620 

Phone: 512-848-

0260 863-447-6878 

Email: 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.32",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.58",  No bullets or

numbering

Commented [EN4]: Event and/or Event Breakdown 

running past midnight will incur after hour charges. 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52)), Strikethrough

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.33"

Formatted: Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,52)), Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.32",  No bullets or

numbering

Commented [AH5]: List insurance reqs or attach 

Exhibit.  

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.08", First line:  0", Right: 

4.06", Space Before:  0.65 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.14 li

17

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 5  

coffman1970@gmail.

com 

dsagboosters@gmail.c

om 

(2) The primary point of contact under this Agreement for the City shall be:  

(3) Dripping Springs Ranch Park 

Attn: DSRP Manager, Lynne 

DickinsonEmily Nelson 

  PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Phone: 512-894-20462390 

Email: 

ldickinson@citvofdrippingsprings.comenelson@citvofdrippingsprings.com 

 
 

D. Term and Termination: The term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years. Either 

party may terminate this agreement by giving written notice thirty (30) days prior to 

termination for any reason. This agreement may also be terminated at any time for 

cause if either party breaches any provision of this agreement. 

 

E. Effective date: This agreement takes effect August 13, 2019OctoberJanuary ____, 

20231. 

 

F. Indemnification: AG BOOSTERS, ITS AGENTS AND/OR EMPLOYEES (AG 

BOOSTER GROUP) SHALL INDEMNIFY, RELEASE AND HOLD THE 

CITY, THE CITY'S AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND/OR VOLUNTEERS (CITY 

GROUP) HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS WITHOUT REGARD 

TO THE CAUSE OR CAUSES THEREOF OR THE NEGLIGENCE OF ANY 

PARTY, ARISING FROM THE AG BOOSTERS GROUP’S'S 

PARTICIPATION AT DRIPPING SPRINGS DSRP, INCLUDING BUT NOT 

LIMITED TO DEATH, ILLNESS, DISEASE, PERSONAL INJURY AND LOST 

OR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY OF ANY MEMBER OF AG 

GROUPPROPERTY. 

F.  

 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING HEREIN TO THE CONTRARY, UNDER NO 

CIRCUMSTANCES, WHETHER UNDER BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT 

(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY, OR ANY OTHER THEORY 

OF LIABILITY SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY 

CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, 

ENHANCED, TREBLE (STATUTORY OR EQUIVALENT), OR PUNITIVE 

DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.09",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Space Before:  0.4 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold, Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.34", Right: 

0.09", Space Before:  0.05 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.09 li, Tab stops:  0.34", Left

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

18

Item 4.

mailto:
mailto:
mailto:ldickinson@citvofdrippingsprings.com


City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 6  

BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY OR LOSS OF PROSPECTIVE REVENUE, ARISING 

OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY WORK OR SERVICES PERFORMED OR 

TO BE PERFORMED HEREUNDER. 

 

G. Transferability: Except as may otherwise be expressly provided herein, the rights and 

obligations created by this Agreement may not be transferred or assigned to another 

party without the express written consent of the City and Ag Boosters. Any 

assignment, if permitted, shall not relieve either party from obligations hereunder.  

 

 

H. Governing Law: The laws of the State of Texas shall govern any disputes or conflicts 

that arise under the terms of this Agreement. The venue for all legal actions involving 

this Agreement shall be Hays County. 

H.  

 

I. Reports of Incidents: Within twenty-four (24) hours upon occurrence, Ag Boosters shall 

provide, in writing, to the City notice and details of any accidents or occurrences resulting in 

injuries to persons, property, or pollution arising in any way from Ag Boosters activities at 

DSRP. 

 

  

I. Entire Agreement: This document represents the entirJety of the agreement between the City 

and the Ag Boosters. No oral or other written contracts outside of this Agreement shall have 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.35",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold, Font color: Custom

Color(RGB(49,49,49))

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.1" + Indent at: 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.1", Hanging:  0.25",

Right:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab stops: Not at 

0.35"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold, Font color: Auto

19

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 7 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Footer, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

J.  any affect unless they are approved m writing by both parties and made a part of this 

Agreement. 

 

J.K. Other Documents: The City and Ag Boosters agree to execute such further documents, 

and to take such further acts, as may be necessary or required to carry out the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

K.L. Amendments: This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed 

by the City and the Ag Boosters. 

 

L.M. Severability: The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any provision or 

part of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall ever 

be held by any agency or court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable, invalid or 

unlawful for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

 

EXECUTED this, the1±_ day of t 
2019. 

 

 

DRIPPING SPRINGS AG BOOSTERS: 

 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

EXECUTED this, the ______ day of _____, 20231. 

 

 

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0 pt, Line

spacing:  single, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.1" + Indent at:  0.35"

20

Item 4.



City of Dripping Springs  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

DSRP Use Agreement  Page 8 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Footer, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

 

 

____________________________ 

Bill Fouldsultz, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

DRIPPING SPRINGS AG BOOSTERS: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Mark CoffmanStephanie Kirkey, President 

 

21

Item 4.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Emily Nelson, Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager 

DSRP Board 

Meeting Date: 

January 4, 2023 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Rate Reduction 

Request from the Dripping Springs United Methodist Church for the 

Dripping Springs Wild Game Dinner. 

Agenda Item 

Requestor: 

Emily Nelson  

Summary/Background:   Dripping Springs United Methodist Church is hosting its 33rd Annual 

Dripping Springs Wild Game Dinner at Dripping Springs Ranch Park on 

February 18th. They will be utilizing the Main Event Room, Main Concession 

Kitchen, Vendor Hall, and Arena. 

They are requesting a 35% discount which is more than the 25% non-profit 

discount that they already qualify for.  

 

Staff 

Recommendation: 

Staff does not recommend additional discounts over our 25% non-profit 

discount. 

Attachments: Wild Game Dinner Rate Reduction Request  

Wild Game Dinner Rental Agreement  

Next Steps/Schedule: If DSRP Board recommends, present to City Council. 

 

22

Item 5.



23

Item 5.



24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



29

Item 5.



30

Item 5.



31

Item 5.



32

Item 5.



33

Item 5.



34

Item 5.



35

Item 5.



MANAGER REPORT

SEPT|OCT|NOV|DEC

A successful  Fa l l  

Written by Emily Nelson 
 

HIGHLIGHTS
Sept: A very busy month with rental during the week and weekends. New Maintenance Team Member, Fletcher
Engstrom, joins the team. Emily attends National Recreations and Park Association in Phoenix, Arizona.

Oct: A full calendar of events like Moto-Extreme Circus and Big Tex Gun Show. The 2nd annual Haunted House was a
success with 1465 attendees. Our Family Friendly Community Hayride was a huge success. The DSRP Riding Series
Hunter|Jumper Show sold out. 

Nov: Grape Camp 2022 returned and had a smooth event. Hosted a new Horse Vaulting Expo event. AV update
project making headway after product availability delays. New team member, Kyle Hagen, joins the DSRP Maintenance
Team. Caylie Houchin joins the DSRP team as Program Coordinator.

Dec: Vintage Market Days had a record attendance. They were very pleased with the team. Coyote Kids Winter Break
camp had a full enrollment at 20 kids and despite the weather kids had an excellent experience. Thank you, Caylie!
Currently interviewing for our DSRP Facility Rental Coordinator position. DSRP Riding Series Holiday Classic
Dressage Show sold out and earned a lot of attendee kudos. Thank you, Lily!!

36

Item 6.



New Life Church Services
Every Sunday

 
4H Point Show

January 7
 

Bobcat Classic
January 14-15

 
 
 
 
 
 

P A G E  0 2

Big Tex Gun Show
January 14-15

 
HCLE Horse Show

January 21
 

HCLE Livestock Show
January 23-29

 
 
 
 
 
 

Coming Soon in January

HIGHLIGHTS AND PREVIEWS

I am really impressed with the Ranch Park staff this
year. They are anticipating our needs and really
attentive. It is the best year yet. Thank you!

                                 --Vintage Market Days

37

Item 6.


	Top
	Item 1.	DSRP: 07.06.22 Minutes
	07.06.22 DSRP Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	DSRP: 09.07.22 Minutes
	09.07.22 DSRP Minutes_draft

	Item 3.	DSRP: 2023 Meeting Calendar
	2023 DSRP Meeting Calendar Staff Report
	2023 CODS Holdiay Calendar_approved (DSISD and County)
	2023 DSRP meeting calendar_draft

	Item 4.	DSRP: Ag Booster Co-Sponsorship Agreement Update
	Staff Report - DSRP_AgBoosters_2023
	2021.10.28 DS Ag Boosters and DSRP Use Agreement - DRAFT

	Item 5.	DSRP: Dripping Springs Wild Game Dinner Rate Reduction Request
	Staff Report - DSRP_WildGame_2023
	2023_02_19_WildGame_RateReductionRequest
	2023_02_19_WildGame_Rental Agreement

	Item 6.	DSRP: October-December Manager Report
	Sept-Dec Manager Report 2022 (1)

	Bottom

